



### **ELECTORAL COMMISSION OF KENYA**

ACCESSION No.

# 1998 ANNUAL REPORT

MATRIANT ASSEMBLY LIBS	AR
ACCESSION No.	-
LOGATION	NEW PROPERTY.

## 1998 ANNUAL REPORT

KENYA NATIONAL ASSEMBLY LIBRARY

Accession: 10006659

Call No: 324 | ECK



Electoral Commission of Kenya Anniversary Towers, 6th Floor University Way P.O. Box 45371 Tel. 254 2 222072 Fax: 254-2-219185 NAIROBI, KENYA

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
1. Establishment of a Secretariat	1
2. Finances	2
3. Establishment of Technical/Functional Committees	2
4. District Election Coordinators	3
5. Observer Missions	3
6. Foreign Seminars, Conferences etc.	4
7. Special Inquiry into the Pending bills-3 to 16 August 1998	5
8. Relations with International and Foreign Electoral	
Organizations	5
9. Relations with other organizations	6
-United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)	6
-United States Agency for International Development	
(USAID)	6
-Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA)	6
-Democratic Development Donor Group (DDDG)	7
-Commonwealth Secretariat	7
-Government of Kenya	8
-Political Parties	8
-Non-Governmental Organizations (NGOs)	8
10. National Conferences, Seminars etc.	8
11. Election Petitions	9
12. Local Government Election Inquiry Applications	13
13. Nominations of the nominated Members of Parliament	13
14. Nomination of nominated Councillors	13
15. By elections	14

-Kieni		1 -
-Makueni		14
16. Role of Commissioners		14
List of Commissioners		15
17. Commission's staff		15
18. 7 August 1998 Bomb Blast		15
19. Visitors		16
APPENDICES		
September 1998 By-Election Results – Kieni	Appendix	1
January 1999 By-Election Results – Makueni	Appendix	2
List of District Election Coordinators	Appendix	3

### 1998 ANNUAL REPORT

#### **INTRODUCTION**

The Electoral Commission has been in existence since 1963 but this is its first Annual Report. The present members therefore had nothing to go by. They did the best they could in the circumstances. It proposes to produce an Annual report regularly.

This report highlights the major events that the Commission undertook during 1998. It is not possible to list all the activities in which the Commission was involved for these are numerous.

The Commission would like to thank the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) for facilitating the production of the report. UNDP contracted three consultants to assist in the preparation of the 1997 General Elections Report and, in the process, produce this report. These consultants, namely Grace Githu, Gondi Hesbon Olum and Abel Ndumbu worked closely with the Commission and came up with this report. The Commission commends the consultants for their commitment and support.

All the Commissioners deserve to be commended. They worked tirelessly and honourably whenever a responsibility was placed before them. The Commission staff is one of the most dedicated team you can find. It is real pride to work with these Commissioners and Commission staff.

#### 1. Establishment of a Secretariat

The amendments of Section 41(10) of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 3 of the National Assembly and Presidential Elections Act in 1997 made it possible for the Commission to appoint its staff from whatever source. The only restriction is that it must consult the Treasury when determining the terms and conditions of service of the staff.

The Commission had, in the past, appointed temporary staff in the juniormost categories. Besides these it did not have any staff of its own. It, however, had a number of public officers from Government ministries who were attached to it from time to time. Some had worked for the Commission for some considerable periods.

The Commissioners, relying on the expertise and experience of each other, managed to agree on the structure of the secretariat suitable to the Commission's kind of work. They then came up with the grading and the scales for the remuneration of these officers. These proposals were then forwarded to the Treasury. The Treasury, working through the Directorate of Personnel Management, accepted the structure and the other proposals but owing to financial constraints, suggested that the Commission appoints the Chief Officers first and a few others, and delay the appointment for other categories until much later. This was agreed and the following staff positions were filled i.e.-

Administrative Secretary
Deputy Administrative Secretary
Principal Public Relations Officer
Systems Administrator
Chief Personnel Officer
Chief Supplies Officer
Chief Accountant
Executive Secretary

Chief Cartographer
District Election Coordinators

Mr. J.H. Tsola
Mr. S. M. Chege
Mani Lemayian
Patrick W. Mwanza
Monicah A. Obel
Daniel O. Mosomi
H.A.K.E. Kenei
Naum N. Ochweri
Sela Amucheri

- Patrick N. Kitenge - List attached

These are not sufficient for the purposes of efficient execution of Commission's responsibilities. However, since their appointment there has been tremendous improvement in the way the administration of the Commission's work is conducted.

#### 2. Finances

For the financial years 1997/98 the Treasury appointed the Clerk of the National Assembly as its accounting officer. As the Commission had no staff this meant all its financial operations were controlled and carried out from elsewhere, in this case, by the National Assembly staff. This included the expenses for the registration of voters and the general elections, both in 1997. During 1998 the Commission was able, by virtue of the new laws that IPPG introduced, to engage some senior staff. By July 1998 it was possible for the Commission to manage its own financial transactions. Thus though the Clerk of the National Assembly remained the accounting officer he appointed the Commission's Administrative Secretary to be the AIE holder and from that point the Commission acquired an appreciable degree of control over its funds. But still that is not satisfactory.

#### 3. Establishment of Technical/Functional Committees

There are 20 Commissioners and the Chairman. It became imperative, in order to be effective, for the Commission to form Committees of its members. These Committees are:

Finance and Foreign Donor Fund Committee

- Logistics Committees
- Establishment Committee
- Computer Committee
- Legal and Electoral Reform Committee
- Voter Education Committee
- Local Authorities Liaison Committee
- Public Relations Committee
- General Purposes Committee
- Liaison Committee

The last two are statutory. Besides, ad hoc Committees have been formed to deal with specific assignments e.g. the 1997 General Elections Report Committee, and ECK Booklet Committee.

A number of Commissioners are in more than one Committee. The Chairman of the Commission is a member of all the Committees.

These Committees meet at any time the full Commission is not meeting. The effect of this is that there are meetings almost every day. There is a great deal of business to be transacted at all times.

#### 4 District Election Coordinators

The Commission has had district election coordinators since 1992. Initially these officers were to act as relay points during elections only. In that position they would store the non-sensitive election materials and distribute these as directed by the Commission. They would also arrange transport for the returning officers and other election officials and deal with the payment of their personal allowances.

By 1993 the Commission realised that District Election Coordinators would perform better if their office tenure lasted longer and they were better remunerated. But that was not possible. Nevertheless the Commission kept these posts filled with people who were ready to work on a temporary basis for very low rewards. In 1998 it became possible to employ these officers at some respectable grades and at reasonable terms and conditions and as a result 68 of them, one per district, were employed.

Their functions continue to be the same as before. The Commission is working hard to have them play a fair role over its finances at the district level.

#### 5. Observer Missions

A number of Commissioners and the Chairman took part in observation missions. These are the following:-

- 14 May 1998 to 27 May 1998 Commission Chairman, Samuel Kivuitu observed parliamentary elections in Lesotho as part of the Commonwealth Observer Group.
- 16 October to 20 October 1998 –Commissioners observed provincial elections at Edmonton in Canada. They were:

Commissioner G.K. Mukele. Vice Chairman Commissioner Rachel Mzera (Mrs) Commissioner S. M. Manyunza Commissioner Habel Nyamu Commissioner Henry Jura

- 24 October to 2 November 1998 Same 5 Commissioners observed US Congress elections.

N.B: these last two exercises were financed by the USAID and CIDA

- 15 October to 19 October 1998 Commissioner Kihara Muttu observed local government and mayor's elections in Hungary at the invitation of that country's electoral authorities.
- December 1998 Commissioner Abuya Abuya observed local government elections in Nigeria facilitated by the International Foundation of Elections Systems (IFES)

#### 6. Foreign Seminars, Conferences etc.

- 23 26 March 1998 Commission Chairman Samuel Kivuitu participated at the Conference of Commonwealth Chief Election Officers at Queen's College, Cambridge, UK.
- 21-31 July 1998 3 Commissioners and a senior Commission official took part at the Seminar on Governance and Improved Development Management held at the Washington International Management Institute at Washington, U.S. financed by UNDP. They were: -

Commissioner Ambassador Jack B. Tumwa Commissioner Silas B. Tunu Commissioner Eliphelt M. Thambu and Deputy Administrative Secretary, Mr. Suleiman M Chege

- 25 to 29 July 1998 Commissioner Justice William Mbaya attended the Electoral Commissions Forum Launch held by the Electoral Commissions within the SADC region in Johannesburg. South Africa. UNDP financed this Commissioner.
- 11 to 16 August 1998 Commission Chairman. Samuel Kivuitu participated at the Conference for the Inauguration of the Association of African Election Authorities facilitated by IFES and financed by USAID.
- 1 to 14 November 1998 Commission Philip Gacoka and the ECK Administrative Secretary Joel Tsola Commission official took

part in the Fourth Regional Election Management Training programme for Commonwealth African Countries in Harare. Zimbabwe.

#### 7. Special Inquiry into the Pending bills – 4 to 16 August 1998

From July 1998 the Commission had its own Vote to run. It was at that time that it realised that it had bills that were pending payment. On inquiry it found that the bills ran from May 1997 to January 1998 and the aggregate was large.

Armed with a summary of alleged pending bills for each province the Commissioners split into eight groups, one for each province, and in that form moved to the provinces to find out how those bills were incurred, their authenticity and correctness, and why they were not paid. It also happened that another team that was appointed by the accounting officer, at the request of the Commission, was also visiting the districts. This latter team consisted of accounting auditing and supplies personnel and hence they were better suited than the Commissioners for the exercise were. Nonetheless the Commissioners carried their fiat and so did these officers. Each group prepared reports. The Commissioners were just about to finalize decisions on how to move from their findings when the Government availed to the Commission the officers' reports. The Commission's response will be made known in the course of 1999.

#### 8. Relations with International and Foreign Electoral Organizations

- A. August 1998 the Commission was admitted as a full member of the Association of African Election Authorities (AAEA).
  - August 1998 the Commission was elected to Advisory Board of AAEA which is the Executive body.
    - Note AAEA's main objects are to promote fair and free elections in African states; and to provide a forum where national electoral authorities can exchange views and to provide material and other support either directly or by providing the facilitation thereof.
- B. International Foundation for Elections Systems (IFES) has been able to support the Commission on the occasions stated in this report. It has also been sending to the Commission useful publications on elections, good governance and human rights.
- C The Commission made contacts with Tanzania and Uganda
  Electoral Commissions and these are developing. A joint meeting
  is expected before June 1999 of some Commissioners from each
  Commission.
- D The Electoral Institute of South Africa sent one of its senior Officials Ms Fiona Tip to contribute at the Commission's seminar on voter education at Nairobi which took place on 22 - 24

September 1998. The Institute met all the participant's expenses. She made a very useful presentation.

#### 9. Relations with other Organizations

#### <u>United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)</u>

This body deserves the highest honor and respect for the support it has given to the Commission. It did the following: -

- financed the purchase of a forklift for the Commission. The forklift is essential for Commission's supplies section.
- it financed the Commissioners' travel to US mentioned in this report.
- it financed the travel to South Africa by the Commissioner mentioned in this report.
- it financed the workshop on voter education
- it financed the District Election Coordinators' training seminar
- it financed the compilation of the 1997 General elections report to be published soon.
- it financed the compilation of a Commission's booklet readable by all English speaking people in Kenya:
- it financed the compilation of this report:
- it has promised to give more assistance to the Commission

Note: UNDP's objective is to strengthen the capacity of the Commission in the discharge of its functions, e.g.during the voter education workshop on 22-24 September 1998.

#### - United States Agency for International Development (USAID)

- Through IFES it financed the Commissioners' travel to and from, and stay at, Ghana for AAEA Conference:
- Met the Commission Chairman's travel, accommodation and subsistence expenses within United States during their observation of Congress elections.
- it has promised more support

#### - Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA)

- Met the Commissioners' travel, accommodation and subsistence expenses within Canada during their observation of the Edmonton election:
- It has averred that more support is on the way.

#### Democratic Development Donor Group (DDDG)

- The Commission held several meetings and consultations with this group. It is a group of 23foreign missions represented in Kenya. There was understanding that the Commission should submit a memorandum to them for study to enable DDDG to select where their countries can help. The commission submitted proposals and it is confident support will be forthcoming. The DDDG have been true partners to the Commission. The missions forming the Group are:-
  - Australia
  - Austria
  - Belgium
  - Canada
  - Denmark
  - Ethiopia
  - Finland
  - France
  - German
  - Greece
  - Hungary
  - Indonesia
  - maone
  - Italy
  - Japan
  - Netherlands
  - Norway
  - Poland
  - Portugal
  - Slovakia
  - Spain
  - Sweden
  - United Kingdom
  - United States

#### **Commonwealth Secretariat**

The Commonwealth Secretariat deserves a special mention as the report shows elsewhere. For example:-

- it invited the Commission to attend the seminar at Cambridge in U.K. and paid all expenses for one Commissioner:
- it invited the Commission to send a Commissioner to be part of the Commonwealth Observer team at Lesotho and met his expenses. It was a notable gesture from the Commonwealth Secretariat, particularly coming after the Cambridge seminar.

- it invited the Commission to send two senior officials to the training programme in Harare. Zimbabwe and paid their expenses.

Note The Secretariat had previously given invaluable advice to the Commission. It was therefore not surprising to receive these invitations. The Secretariat has indicated it will continue to maintain this positive relationship with the Commission.

#### Government of Kenya

- The Commission is an independent agency of the Kenya Government in charge of elections. Throughout the year the Government respected this position. It financed all the Commission's work other than what was financed by others. Its financial burden was far bigger than that of all the others put together. This position is expected to grow stronger as the country's financial position improves.

#### Political Parties

There were two meetings held between the Commission and representatives of the political parties. Discussions were friendly and decisions were taken with no dissension. The political parties showed positive attitude towards the Commission. Even the correspondence between the two is amicable. It is clear that future relations promise to be similarly fruitful.

#### - Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs)

- The Commission had a very healthy exchange of ideas with NGOs interested in elections, good governance and democracy. These NGOs can play a more effective way if and when they seek to interact with the Commission.

#### 10. National Conferences, Seminars etc.

- 24.4.1998 - Commission Chairman on invitation, addressed participants at an International Advertising Association Seminar on "How the Media can turn the 45% of Kenya Electorate who are illiterate into Voters with know how" held in Nairobi. Participants were senior media and public relations practitioners and some prominent members of parliament.

- 14<sup>th</sup> July 1998 Commission Chairman delivered the keynote address on electoral process in Kenya at a Pre-departure Orientation seminar organized by the Public Law Institute in Nairobi.
- 20 of September 1998 Commission Chairman participated in the Pace-Net International Conference in Nairobi at the invitation of Pan African Civic Education Network and the Konrad Adenaur Foundation of Germany.
- 22 24<sup>th</sup> September 1998 the Commission organized a voter education workshop on voter education in Nairobi attended by all the Commissioners. senior Commission Officials. University dons, senior officials from Ministry of Education, Institute of Education, Institute of Administration, senior officials from political parties, several senior representatives of NGOs with direct interest and the UNDP Deputy Resident Representative and other senior officials. The subject of the workshop was to source materials to assist the Commission prepare a curriculum on Voter Education.
- 22<sup>nd</sup> October 1998 Commission Chairman attended a workshop in Nairobi entitled "Consultative Workshop on Participatory Local Governance" organized by the Agency for Development Education and Communication (ADE) an NGO. It was sponsored by USAID.
- 13 16 December 1998 the Commission organized a training workshop for its District Election Coordinators and senior Commission officials held in Nairobi. It was addressed by Commissioners and external experts on selected subjects. It also took the form of a forum for exchange of ideas and proposals for the enhancement of the DEC's capacity as a part of the process of strengthening the Commission.

#### 11. Election Petitions

These are cases which are filed in the High Court to challenge Presidential or Parliamentary elections. Only a registered voter or a losing candidate can file these cases.

In 1998, as a result of the 1997 general elections (i.e. Presidential, Parliamentary and Civic elections) 27 election petitions were filed. By 31<sup>st</sup> December 1998, 19 of these had been dismissed or struck off for one reason or another.

These election petitions include that by Hon. Mwai Kibaki against Hon. Daniel Arap Moi, the President of the Republic, challenging his election as the President of Kenya and as the Member of Parliament for Baringo Central. It is still pending.

The full list of the election petitions are as follows: - .

	COURT	PARTIES	CONSTITUENCY
1	Meru H.C.E.P.198	<ul> <li>Eustace Mbuba Ntwiga</li> <li>Vs.</li> <li>1. Julius Keusyoki</li> <li>2. Electoral Commission of Kenya</li> <li>3. Samuel Kivuitu</li> <li>4. Bernard Njoka Mutari</li> </ul>	Nithi
2	Mombasa H.C.E.P. 1/98 Formerly H.C.E.P. 4/98	Said Hemed Said Vs 1. Emannuel Karisa Maitha 2. Hotham Nyange	Kisauni
3.	Nairobi H.C.E.P.5/98	Mohamed Abdi Ali Vs. 1. Adan Keynan Wahene 2. Abdi Rahim Abbas	Wajir West
4	Nairobi H.C.E.P./2/98	<ol> <li>Abubakar Dubow Abdi</li> <li>Mohamed Abdille Abdi</li> <li>Vs.</li> <li>Said Adan Warsame (R.O.)</li> <li>Muhamed Abdi Affey</li> <li>Electoral Commission of Kenya</li> </ol>	Wajir South
5	Nairobi H.C.E.P.3/98	Betty Njeri Tett Vs. 3. Rosemary Moraa 4. Fredick Omulo Gumo 5. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Westlands
6.	Nairobi H.C.E.P. 6/98	Joseph Kennedy Kiliku Vs.  1. Mary Mwamodo 2. Seif Ramadhan Kajembe 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Changamwe
7.	Meru H.C.E.P. 3/98	Tache Wako Gaji Vs. 1. Omar Sheikh 2. Charfana Guyo Mokku 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Isiolo North
8.	Nairobi H.C.E.P. 8/98	Alexander Kipaiyu Siable Vs.  1. Daniel Tallam (R.O.) 2. George Saitoti 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Kajiado North
9.	Nairobi H.C. E. P. 9/98	Yusuf Issa Abdi Vs.  1. Anow Adawa 2. Elias Barre Shile 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Fafi

10.	Mombasa H.C.E.P.3/98	Khamisi Chome Abdi Vs. 1. Francis Chibwara 2. Basil Nguku Mwakiringo 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Voi
11.	Kakamega H.C.E. P. 1/98	<ol> <li>Alfred Muhadia Ngome</li> <li>John Sitati Teka</li> <li>Vs.</li> <li>George W. Sitati Teka</li> <li>Peter Soita Shikanda</li> <li>Electoral Commission of Kenya</li> </ol>	Malava
12	Nairobi H.C.E.P. 11/98	Samuel Kamau Macharia Vs.  1. Electoral Commission of Kenya 2. Naphtali Chomba 3. Samuel Macharia Alias Samwel Macharia 4. David Murathe	Gatanga
13.	Nairobi H.C.E.P. 1/98	Mwai Kibaki Vs. 1. Daniel T. A. Moi 2. S. M. Kivuitu 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Republic of Kenya
14.	Kakamega H.C.E.P.3/98	Japhet Gatagati Shamalla Vs. 1. Philip Wekesa 2. Daniel Lyula Khamasi	Shinyalu
15	Nairobi H.C.E.P. 10/98	Perez Malande Olindo Vs. 1. Rev. Joseck Tsuma 2. Electoral Commission of Kenya 3. Raila Amolo Odinga 4. Charles Maranga Bagwasi	Langata
16	Kakamega H.C.E.P. 5/98	Ernest Eugne Osogo Vs. 1. Bahati Shikanga 2. Raphael Wanjala S. Biita 3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	Budalangi
17.	Kisumu H.C.E.P. 1/98	Elijah Obare Asiko Vs.  1. Electoral Commission of Kenya 2. Walter Juma Absalom 3. Joseph Aketch Donde	Gem

18	Nairobi	Wario Hukha Ali	
10	H.C.E.P. 17/98	Vs.	North Horr
	11.C.L.1 . 17/96	1. Stephen Miriti Muguna	North Horr
		Dr. Bonaya Adhi Godana	, .
19	Nairobi		
19	H.C.E.P. 13/98	Ochieng Gilbert Mbeo	17
	П.С.Е.Р. 13/98	Vs.	Kasarani
		1. Thomas ochieng	
		2. Adolf Isaac Muchiri	
20	Manahasa	A.L. 1' XX/-4' 1	
20	Mombasa	Abdi Waticho	D
	H.C.E.P. 4/98	Vs.	Bura
		1. Rophin Mwakio Ndau	
21	77	2. Mohamed Abdi Galgalo	
21	Kisii	David Ondimu Kombo	
	H.C.E.P.22/98	Vs.	South Mugirango
		1. Oburu Obara	
		2. Enock Nyankieya Magara	
22	Nakuru	Alicen J. R. Chelaite	Nakuru Town
	H.C.E.P. 1/98	Vs.	
		1. David Manyara Njuki	
		2. Simon Ole Kerore	
		3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	
23	Kakamega	<ol> <li>Harry Rogers Keya</li> </ol>	
	H.C.E.P. 2/98	2. William Nandwa Anjiri	
		3. Peter Leo Murunga	
		Vs.	Butere
		Dr. Amukowa F. Anangwe	
		J.B. Omasete	
		Bishop Horace Etemesi	
24	Nairobi	1. Abdi Hassan Haji	
	H.C.E.P.19/98	2. Mohamed Abdullahi Omar	Mandera East
		Vs.	
		1. Shaabani Ali Issack & 4 others	
25	Meru	Stephen Mukangu	
	H.C.E.P. 2/98	Vs.	
		1. D.K. Kituku	Tigania West
		2. Electoral Commission of Kenya	
		3. Benuamin Ndubai	
26	Kakamega	Meshack Luchendo Libasia	Shinyalu
	H.C.E.P. 4/98	Vs.	
		1. Philip Wekesa	
		2. Daniel Lyula Khamsi	
		3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	
27	Nyeri	Stephen Kimani Gakenia	
	H.C.E.P.1/98	Vs.	
		Francis Mwangi Kimani	Ol Kalou
		2. Karue M. Muriuki	
		3. Electoral Commission of Kenya	
	-		

#### 12. <u>Local Government Election Inquiry Applications</u>

These are cases filed by losing candidates or voters or even the Returning Officers challenging the election of local government councillor. There were filed. These are filed in Magistrate's Courts. The Commission hires practicing lawyers to represent it and the Returning Officers in the applications. It has not received up to date information regarding how many of these have been disposed of. All the same the Magistrates' Courts appear to be slower in dealing with these cases than the High Court. There may be good reasons for these delays but the Commission is yet to know them.

#### 13. Nominations of the nominated Members of Parliament

There are 12 nominated seats to be filed. The constitution empowered the Commission to apportion these seats amongst the political parties which had elected members of parliament according to that membership. Thus a party with more elected members of parliament should have correspondingly more nominated slots.

The Commission used simple arithmetic of proportions and ratios and came to the conclusion that the 12 seats would be shared as follows: -

KANU - 6 DP - 2 NDPK - 1 FORD-K - 1 SDP - 1 SAFINA - 1

The parties proposed their respective nominees. The Commission checked if each of the nominees was qualified to be nominated. If satisfied the Commission forwarded the names to the President of the Republic to do the nomination. The Commission then caused the gazettement of the names. Some parties seemed to experience some difficulty in determining the gender balance while nominating

#### 14. Nomination of nominated Councillors.

The principles that applied to the nomination of members of parliament applied to nomination of councillors. However after succeeding to apportion most seats the Commission realised in the case of some local authorities (Councils), the computation led to a tie between some political parties. It therefore became necessary to have the problem resolved by casting of lots. This was done on 3 March 1998 and all the portfolios were shared out to the satisfaction of all.

<u>Note</u>: The gender issue in the nomination of MPs and Councillors require perfection. Law should be clear to the implementers. That cannot be said to be so with the state of the law as of now.

#### 15. By elections

Two parliamentary constituencies fell vacant due to the death of the sitting MPs. These were Kieni in Nyeri district and Makueni in Makueni district. By elections were held to fill these vacancies.

#### Kieni

In addition to Kieni parliamentary election. 42 civic wards were vacant by 8<sup>th</sup> August 1998 either because elections were not held during the general elections in 1997 or as a result of deaths of sitting councillors. These were filled during the by-election for Kieni Constituency on 16 September 1998.

Two candidates, namely John Gitiche Mbao of KANU and D. Christopher Murungaru of DP contested the Kieni constituency election and Dr. Christopher Murungaru was pronounced the new MP for Kieni constituency.

#### Makueni

In addition to Makueni constituency there were 9 civic wards which were vacant either on account of deaths of incumbents, or some elections stalemate e.g. in the case of Ronge Juu ward where the confusion on boundaries caused the previous by election to abort, and Nkairamiram ward where a repeat of the by election became necessary when there was a tie in the score by the only two contestants in the previous by election.

On 29<sup>th</sup> and 30<sup>th</sup> December 1998 two candidates were nominated to contest the Makueni seat, namely, (1) Peter Eliud Maundu of KANU and (2) Maurice Kivuva Musomba of SDP. Elections were held on 16 January 1999 and Peter Eliud Maundu won the elections.

For more details for Kieni, Makueni and civic areas' results please see Appendix 1 and 2.

#### 16. Role of Commissioners

The law vests the general supervision of elections on the Commissioners. The constitution requires them to promote free and fair elections. In this regard the Commissioners held several meetings before, during and after every election. They laid the ground for the holding of fair and free elections. They then split into teams – each team ensuring it is available to the Returning Officers for advice and guidance in suitable circumstances. Other Commissioners oversaw the printing packaging labelling and air freighting of the ballot papers. Others inspected the packaging in the Commission's warehouse to ascertain the right ballot papers were delivered.

#### LIST OF COMMISSIONERS

S.M. KIVUITU	-	CHAIRMAN
GABRIEL K. MUKELE	-	VICE-CHAIRMAN
EDWARD C. CHERONO	-	COMMISSIONER
AMB. M.W KENYATTA	-	COMMISSIONER
AMB. FRANCIS NGANATHA	-	COMMISSIONER
NICHOLAS NG'ANG'A	-	COMMISSIONER
ISAYA CHELUGET	-	COMMISSIONER
BASHIR SHEIKH ALI	-	COMMISSIONER
ELIPHELET. NJIRU M'THAMBU	-	COMMISSIONER
HENRY M. JURA	-	COMMISSIONER
SILAS B. TUNU	-	COMMISSIONER
STEPHENSON MAGETO	-	COMMISSIONER
ABUYA ABUYA	-	COMMISSIONER
HABEL NYAMU	-	COMMISSIONER
KIHARA MUTTU	-	COMMISSIONER
PHILIP GACHOKA	-	COMMISSIONER
SAMUEL MANYUNZA	-	COMMISSIONER
JUSTICE W. MBAYA	-	COMMISSIONER
AMB. JACK TUMWA	-	COMMISSIONER
BRIG. (RTD) R. MUSONYE	-	COMMISSIONER
RACHEL MZERA (MRS.)	-	COMMISSIONER
	GABRIEL K. MUKELE EDWARD C. CHERONO AMB. M.W KENYATTA AMB. FRANCIS NGANATHA NICHOLAS NG'ANG'A ISAYA CHELUGET BASHIR SHEIKH ALI	GABRIEL K. MUKELE  EDWARD C. CHERONO  AMB. M.W KENYATTA  AMB. FRANCIS NGANATHA  NICHOLAS NG'ANG'A  ISAYA CHELUGET  BASHIR SHEIKH ALI  ELIPHELET. NJIRU M'THAMBU  HENRY M. JURA  SILAS B. TUNU  STEPHENSON MAGETO  ABUYA ABUYA  HABEL NYAMU  KIHARA MUTTU  PHILIP GACHOKA  SAMUEL MANYUNZA  JUSTICE W. MBAYA  AMB. JACK TUMWA  BRIG. (RTD) R. MUSONYE  -

#### 17. Commission's Staff

The Commission had very effective and efficient officers. It is their immense contribution that has enabled the Commissioners to carry on with their constitutional responsibilities with relative ease.

#### 18. 7 August 1998 Bomb Blast

In September 1998 the Commissioners and the staff at the Headquarters came together and collected some little money and joined the other Kenyans in donating Kshs.222. 300/= towards the Fund for the victims of the Bomb Blast of 7 August 1998.

#### 19. Visitors

During this period the Commission received many visitors. These were ambassadors, other embassy officials, academics, senior election officials from foreign countries, leading foreign political leaders and Kenyan prominent political leaders. The most significant visitors were the Members of the European Parliament led by Lord Plumb on 7<sup>th</sup> September 1998, the Hungarian Ambassador on. 28 August 1998, the Ambassador of Denmark on 29 September 1998, Mr. Bryan E. Burton Counsellor (Political and Commercial) at Canadian High Commission, and Canadian High Commissioner on 26 November 1998 who also chair the DDDG. In all the cases the visitors discussed with the Commissioners numerous matters of mutual interest which naturally included elections, good governance, democracy, the status of the Commission, the tenure of the Commissioners and voter education. The discussions were always fruitful and encouraging.

#### **NOTE**

These foreign visits, observer missions, foreign and national conferences, seminars and workshops have been beneficial to the Commission. The Commissioners and the staff have been able to learn from the experience of other electoral authorities, to share with others current trends in politics and relations: to discuss with others the improvements to electoral systems. laws, procedures and processes that may be necessary; to observe electoral processes in other countries, compare that with Kenyans and draw relevant lessons. The effect is that knowledge and skills thus acquired do go along way to improve the capacity of the Commission to plan and conduct an election efficiently given the necessary resources. That success, fortunately, appears to coincide with the objectives of the organizations which have facilitated and sponsored these programmes.

Appendix 1

ELECTORAL COMMISSION OF KENYA SEPTEMBER 1998 BY-ELECTION RESULTS

# A: PARLIAMENTARY

REGIS	REGIS	REGIS	REGISTEREDVO TERS 49449	TOTAL VOTES CAST 17108	34.60%	VALID VOTES 17,012	REJECTED % VOTES 96	% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE TOTAL VOTES CAST MURUNGARU, CHRIST MARIL JOHN GATICHE	OPHER NDARA	NAME OF CANDIDATE POLITICAL PARTY S  MURUNGARU, CHRISTOPHER NDARA DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENY MARIL JOHN GITICHE	VOTES SCORED 16,022	94.18%
											•	
	ELECTORAL AREA	IL AREA	REGISTEREDVO TERS	TOTAL VOTES CAST		VALID VOTES	REJECTED %	% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE TOTAL VOTES CAST			VOTES SCORED	
	0008 MIR	MIRITINI	7,799	2,209	28.32%	2,188	12	0.95% OMAR, HASSAN KAD		KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	932	42.60%
								NDURYA, KHAMISI ALI		SHIRIKISHO PARTY OF KENYA	612	27.97%
								SALEH, YAHYA BIRSHIR		SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	180	8.23%
								MAGOBA, VIT	MAGOBA, VITALIS WANYAMA	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)	167	7.63%
								SALIM, MBAR	SALIM, MBARAK SWALEH	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	119	5.44%
								BERNARD, M	BERNARD, MUNENE MWAI	KENYA NATIONAL CONGRESS	66	4.52%
								MWINJAKA, N	MWINJAKA, MWINYIFAKI MWINJAKA	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	79	3.61%
_	0014 VIG	0014 VIGURUNGANI	33,478	739	2.21%	738	-	0.14% KOMBO HASSAN		KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	462	62.60%
								CHIPHATSI, R	CHIPHATSI, RAPHAEL MANGUYA	SHIRIKISHO PARTY OF KENYA	276	37.40%
	0009 KAN	KAMBE	3724	1456	39.07%	1,435	20	1.37% MWAMANGA,	1.37% MWAMANGA, VALENTINE MATSAKI	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	682	47.53%
								KATANA, HAI	KATANA, HAROLD ERIC RUA	SHIRIKISHO PARTY OF KENYA	378	26.34%
								LENGA, PHILI	LENGA, PHILIP NATHANIEL	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	375	26.13%

77.49% 17.19% 5.32%

126 268

DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF
KENYA
KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL
UNION
SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY
OF KENYA

JEREMIAH, EMMANUEL KOMBE

TOYA, GIDEON BAYA

0.14% MLEWA, FARAJ MKARE

733

38.03%

734

1930

0002 JILORE

019 MALINDI

CONSTITUENCY	ELEC	ELECTORAL AREA	REGISTEREDVO	TOTAL		VALID	REJECTED	% REJECTED TO	% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE	POLITICAL PARTY V	VOTES	
			TERS	VOTES CAST		VOTES	VOTES	TOTAL VOTES CAST		Ĭ,	SCORED	•
022 GALOLE	6000	CHEWANI	1192	591	49.58%	584	7	1.18	1.18% DHIDHA, AWADHI DOYO	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	308	52.74%
									DUKO, ESTHER HAJIBO	SHIRIKISHO PARTY OF KENYA	276	47.26%
031 LAGDERA	0012	ABAGAILE	247	19	24.70%	61	0	0.00	0.00% OMAR, ABDI HUSSEIN	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	20	81.97%
									HIBAT, MOHAMED TEMEGEA	ONION FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	=	18.03%
									MOHAMED, HASSAN MAALIM	DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA) DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	0	%00.0
032 FAFI	0014	HAGADERA	540						SHURIE, ABDI AHMED	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	Ň	UNOPPOSED
033 IJARA	8000	SANKORE	332	181	54.52%	181	0		0.00% ABDI, HAMDI KOSAR	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	166	91.71%
									ALI, SIAT NUR	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	15	8.29%
037 WAJIR SOUTH	9000	KIWANJA NDEGE	1502	427	28.43%	424	9		0.70% FARAH, ABDI HARED	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	294	69.34%
									IBRAHIM, ALI SHAHAN	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	126	29.72%
									NUR, ADEN MOHAMED	KENYA NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	4	0.94%
	0014	KORSEN	95	14	14.74%	14	0		0.00% MOHAMUD, MOHAMED ABDI	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	14	100.00%
									AFFEY, MOHAMED ELMOGE	FARIT OF NEWTA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	0	%00.0
	0015	SHIMBIR BUUL	45						ABDI, GARANE YAHYE	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	S	UNOPPOSED
042 NORTH HORR	0002	ILLERET	461	221	47.94%	220	-	0.45	0.45% KORICHIR, AMOS TAKAN KWANYANG GOSH	SAFINA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	152 68	69.09% 30.91%
047 IGEMBE	9000	MAILO TATU	1140	736	64.56%	735	-	0.14	0.14% M'KUURA, CHARLES E. KUBAI	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	491	%08.99
									M'IMIRONGO, ISAAC MUTHIAINE	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	201	27.35%
									MUGAMBI, DANIEL THURANIRA	PARIT OF KENTA DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	43	5.85%
047 IGEMBE	0014		453	254	%20.9%	254	0		0.00% LINTARI NTUALA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	210	82.68%
		PART(GITE <b>RET</b> U)							MUNORU, ISAIAH MITHIKA	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	4	17.32%
057 RUNYENJES	8000	KIGAA	2401	1350	56.23%	1,336	41		1.04% NYAGA, NICHOLAS NJERU	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD ASILI)	538	40.27%

	25.90%	19.54%	14.30%	71.14%	28.86%	54.61%	45.39%	49.67%	35.64%	13.49%		52.34%	21.22% 20.78%	%99.5	78.98%	13.84%	7.18%	58.19%	20.90%	14.96%	2	1.19%	36.71%
VOTES SCORED	346	261	191	626	254	995	827	453	325	123		481	195	52	1,518	266	138	245	88	63	04	2	612
POLITICAL PARTY S	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	PARIT OF KENYA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	ONION SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	OF KENYA SAFINA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	ONION	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	LIBERAL PARTY OF KENYA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	RENTA SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA) SAFINA	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	SAFINA
% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE TOTAL VOTES CAST	MURIUKI, SAMUEL KAMAITHA	NDATHI, BIAMA NYAGA	JOHANA, PATRICK NJUKI	0.34% KALII, BENJAMIN NJEI	MICHAEL, JOHN MUTUA	3.90% MUKITI, DANIEL MUSILI	NGOTHYA, JASON MUNUVE	1.30% ITHIGA, MICHAEL GITARI	MACHERE, STANLEY KINYUA	NYINGI, SAMUEL MUREITHI NGIGI, PETERSON NJIRAINI		1.61% KARANI, SAMUEL MAINA	GICHANGI, JOSEPH MARTIN CHUMA, SAMUEL KARANI	NJOGU, JOHN KIARA	1.54% MUSAU, HANNAH KATEMI	MWANGI, WILFRED MBARU	MURAYA, SAMUEL NJOROGE	3.00% JUSA , BOAZ KIBAIRO	KANITHI, CHARLES MUTUA	MUIRURI, KENNETH KAMAU	NDUNG'U, MOSES MUKUNDI	NJOROGE, DAVID KINANI	3.70% THUMBI, FRANCIS KINUTHIA
REJECTED % F				က		47		12				15			30			13					49
VALID				880		1,822		912				919			1,922			421					1,667
				58.21%		46.94%		43.02%				22.78%			30.85%			56.36%					15.68%
TOTAL VOTES CAST				883		1596		924				934			1952			434					1731
REGISTEREDVO T				1517		4039		2148				4100			6327			077					11043
ELECTORAL AREA				KISEUNI		MIAMBANI / CHANGWITHYA EAST PART (KITIMUI SUB. LOC)		KERUGOYA NORTH-EAST				KERUGOYA SOUTH-EAST			ITHANGA WARD			JACARANDA					ALUL
ELECT				0018		0012		0001				0007			2000			0001					0022
CONSTITUENCY				KITUI WEST		KITUI CENTRAL		KERUGOYA/KUTUS							GATANGA			AUUr					
CONS				062		063		080							160			100					

	27.65%	16.50%	12.72%	6.42%	91.94%	8.06%		<b>69</b> .06%	30.94%	58.62%	40.38%	UNOPPOSED	UNOPPOSED	71 36%	14.69%	13.86%	71.50%	28.50%	59.28%	27.96%	%Z <b>8</b> 'S	4.03%
VOTES SCORED	197	275	212	101	ts	w		2	\$		3	OND	ONO	573	118	112	=	352	265	125	8	<b>4</b>
POLITICAL PARTY S	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	PARTY OF KENYA DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	KENYA SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION FORUM FOR THE	RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	CORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION FORUM FOR THE	DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA) DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	KENYA SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA
Y, REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE TOTAL VOTES CAST	GATHIGA, RACHAEL TIRIBI	KARANJA, SAMMY KAHUHU	KAMAU, JUSTINE MENDI	WARIAHE, GEORGE INWANG	1.59% KALIMAPUS, KENETH KALING	ATONG, EWOTON ERUSI		0.71% JAMES, MARAKA EBENYO	PELEKECH, BILA ARUKURIKUI	0.64% LORRIWO, JAMES KASSES	AKOL, BENJAMIN EMOJO	LORECH, YWALAKAN PETER	LOMERIKWANG LOLEMTUM	0.12% WANGALWA, HENRY MANGWANA	SIFUNA, JAMES BARASA	WACHIRA, SAMMY GICHUKI	0.32% MĒLI, URBANO CHELAGAT	LAGAT, JOSEPH CHERUIYOT	0.89% KIMWAREY, JOSEPH KIBIY	AKOTO, MAHELI WILLIAM	NJENGA, KARUGA KABUI	OLUTEYO, SAMUEL OKOMA
1					-			-		-				-			•		4			
REJECTED VOTES																						
VALID					2	!		139		156				<b>8</b> 03			1,235		744			
ļ					13.02%			35.98%		53.95%				18.66%			57.31%		26 65%			
TOTAL VOTES					5	3		<del>1</del>		157				2			1239		451			
REGISTEREDWO TERS					•	•		389		291		245	1374	4125			2162		1692			
ELECTORAL AREA						LOROINESERON		MEYAN		KAPEDO		KALAPATA	MISKWONY	HOSPITAL			KIPKABUS		HOSPITAL			
ELEC						<b>7</b> 000		\$100		100		0010	4100	6000			8100		7100	;		
CONSTITUENCY						TURKANA NORTH				HINS ANA SOUTH			KAPENGURIA	SABOTI			ELDORET EAST		EL DORET FAST			
SOUS						<u>\$</u>				5	1	ě	5	115			=	!	;	<b>!</b>		

SNOO	CONSTITUENCY	FI FCT	FI ECTORAL AREA	REGISTEREDVO	TOTAL		VALID	REJECTED	% REJECTED	% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE	POLITICAL PARTY	VOTES	
				TERS	VOTES CAST		VOTES	VOTES	TOTAL VOTES CAST			SCORED	
										OMBUI, WHITNEY MONG'ARE	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	13	2.91%
122	KEIYO NORTH	0007	SERGOIT/KATALEL	3014	1291	42.83%	1,284	7	0	0.54% SOMONGI, BENEDICT SEREM	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	961	74.84%
										KIPRONO, PETER KIPKOSGEI	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)	323	25.16%
127	TINDERET	0002	O'LLESSOS	2639						RONO, JOEL KIPKETER	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	ON O	UNOPPOSED
131	MOGOTIO	9000	KAKIMOR	521	370	71.02%	360	10	2	2.70% KIGEN, DAVID KIMAIYWA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	348	%29.96
										KANGOGO, ZACHARIA K. MENGICH	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	12	3.33%
132	ELDAMA RAVINE	0000	KOISAMO	604						KAISANG, GRACE JEPKEMBOI	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	Ň	UNOPPOSED
137	KURESOI	0015	SILIBWET	915	518	56.61%	516	2		0.39% CHEPSERGON, SILAS KIPTARUS	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	410	79.46%
										KIRUI, MICAH KIPLANGAT	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	106	20.54%
142	NAROK NORTH	0020	NKAIRAMIRAM	334	96:	88.62%	296	0		0.00% LANKE, JOSEPH TUNAIYIO	PARTY OF INDEPENDENT	148	%00.09
										SADERA, MEITAMEI OLE	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	148	20.00%
143	NAROK SOUTH	0001	SAGAMIA	3206						LANGAT, JOSEPH KIPKORIR	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	S	UNOPPOSED
153	OMANIA	0010	KABORUSO	534	322	60.30%	320	2		0.62% CHEBELYON, ELIJAH CHERUIYOT ARÆENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	RAKENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	269	84.06%
3										MARITIM, MONICA CHEROTICH	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	51	15.94%
154	KIPKELION	0022	MASAITA	1336	757	26.66%	751	9		0.79% KAHURA, RICHARD NG'ANG'A S.	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	430	57.26%
										KAMORI, DAVID KARAYA	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	321	42.74%
160	SHINYALU	0001	KAMBIRI	5995	1708	30.15%	1,677	31		1.81% LUCHEVELELI, AINEAH SHAMALA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	780	46.51%
										WIREJEKHA, CHARLES ABUN'GANA		769	45.86%
										KABURU, FRANCIS INGOSI	DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA) NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	128	7.63%

CONS	CONSTITUENCY	ELEC	ELECTORAL AREA	REGISTEREDVO	TOTAL		VALID	REJECTED	% REJECTED TO NAME OF CANDIDATE	NDIDATE	POLITICAL PARTY	VOTES	
				S S	CAST		VOIES	VOIES	CAST			SCORED	
191	KARACHUONYO	0010	WADHGONE NYONGO	1112	835	75.09%	827	80	0.96% APUKO, RUTH ANYANGO	H ANYANGO	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	484	58.52%
									OORO, GIDIO	OORO, GIDION ONGONG'A	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	211	25.51%
									MAGAK, SAN	MAGAK, SAMUEL NYAMBUGA	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	132	15.96%
											DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA)		
		0015	KANYALUO EAST	875	523	59.77%	208	15	2.87% ODIANGO, WILLIAM OUMA	ILLIAM OUMA	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	356	70.08%
									ORINDA, TOE	ORINDA, TOBIAS OWUOR	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	339	%62.73%
									KOYO, PHILIP ODERO	P ODERO	OF NENTA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	152	29.92%
		0017	WANG'CHIENG/RAMBIRA	4684	1786	38.13%	1,772	14	0.78% ODUNGU, PETER OCHIENG	TER OCHIENG	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	918	51.81%
			(FRKI)						AGUNGA, LA	AGUNGA, LAZARUS EVANS ODOYO	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	515	29.06%
195	MIGORI	0015	ORUBA	3961	1106	27.92%	1,094	12	1.08% SINDA, MICHAEL WASONGA	AEL WASONGA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	375	34.28%
									K'ORUKO, ROSE AKINYI	OSE AKINYI	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	719	65.72%
198	MBITA	0002		2493	1303	52.27%	1,299	4	0.31% USIGU, JOSEPH OTIENO	PH OTIENO	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	284	21.86%
			WESI (PARI)						OKUMU, BOA	OKUMU, BOAZ ACHIANDO	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	480	36.95%
									ODONGO, RA	ODONGO, RAPHAEL OUMA	DEMOCRACY (FORD KENYA) NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	534	41.11%
		0013	WASARE	3563	1301	36.51%	1,288	13	1.00% OUMA, OYUMA TITUS	IA TITUS	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	755	58.62%
									NYAKECH, EI	NYAKECH, EDWARD ONGORO	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	533	41.38%
204	BOBASI	0000	SAMETA	2320	1206	51.98%	1,185	21	1.74% NYAUNTU, FRANCIS MORAN'GA	RANCIS MORAN'GA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	260	47.26%
									NYAKABA, DAVID OGEGA	AVID OGEGA	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	363	30.63%
									MAKORI, CHF	MAKORI, CHRISTOPHER ONGORI	NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	262	22.11%

Appendix 2

# ELECTORAL COMMISSION OF KENYA JANUARY 1999 BY-ELECTION RESULTS

A: PARLAMENTARY

51.27%	47.18%	1.55%					44.21%	37.16%		13.74%	4.90%	56.15%	21.15%	0.84%	0.72%	, VO 00%	20.00	%00.09	49.07%	44.27%
VOTES	12208	11235	369		9	SCORES	370	311		115	41	470	177	7	9	430	62	139	1,054	951
POLITICAL PARTY KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	KIVUVA  OF KENYA  MILESIMI GEORGE MATATA NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	PARTY OF KENYA			POLITICAL PARTY	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	KENYA	MZUNGU MOHAMED NYIRO SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	OF KENYA CHIVATSI BENJAMIN DAVID SHIRIKISHO PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY	OF KENYA NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA		KENYA AFRICAN NA HONAL UNION	DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY	(FORD ASILI) DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA
NAME OF CANDIDATE MAUNDU PETER ELIUD	MUTUA MUSOMBA MAURICE	KIVUVA				NAME OF CANDIDATE	MWACHIDZUNGU	MWACHINGA DANIEL TSORI KAI AMA ELIUS		MZUNGU MOHAMED NYIRC	CHIVATSI BENJAMIN DAVII	MASUMANI BETHWEL	MWASAMU MAGANGA JACOB	KISOMBE ISAAC MWAKNGHA JOHN LOVE	MANYINDO JONATHAN		HUSSEIN SIRAD AHAMED	ADAN MAOW MUHUMED	IRERI SALESIUS	NJAGI MOSES NJERU
% REJECTED VOTES TO TOTAL VOTES CAST 0.41%	:				% REJECTED	VOTES TO TOTAL	0.59%					%09.0					0.36%		%26.0	
REJECTED VI VOTES	3					REJECTED V	5					4					-		21	
VALID RI VOTES	23,012					VALID R	837					099					278		2,148	
% VOTER TURNOUT	42.93%					% VOTER	1UKNOU!					52.95%					45.07%		42.83%	
TOTAL VOTES CAST	23,911				TOTAL	VOTES	CAST 842	Š				664					279		2,169	
REGISTERED VOTERS	55,695					REGISTERED	VOTERS	300'I				1.254	į				619		5,064	
							POLLING AREA	0015 RIBE				IIII SONOG SOO	DOS PONOS COMO				0017 DADAJI BULA		UMIHLIM 5000	
CONSTITUENCY	075 MAKUENI			B: CIVIC			CONSTITUENCY	017 KALOLENI					028 MWAIAIE				MA JIR SOUTH		ATTAVNAM 220	

	%99'9	%68.75	4	6.27%	%00.0	50.17%	49.83%	71.14%	28.86%	75.72%	22.56%	1.01%	0.72%
VOTES	143	924	672	100	0	149	148	1,467	595	527	157	7	2
POLITICAL PARTY	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	SOCIAL DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	UNION NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PARTY OF KENYA	PARTY OF INDEPENDENT	CANDIDA IES OF RENTA KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION		(FORD KENYA) KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL UNION	KENYA AFRICAN NATIONAL	FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF DEMOCRACY	(FORD KENYA) NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT	PARIT OF KENYA DEMOCRATIC PARTY OF KENYA
NAME OF CANDIDATE	WAMBUI SARA BERNICE	YOMA KISENGE	MUTUNGI PETER YULU	NGIROLEM SAMWEL	KITIYO CONSTANTINE MARTY	LANKE TUNYIO JOSEPH	SADERA MEITAMEI OLE	LUSAKA KHISA WYCLIFFE	JUMA CONRAD MCLEOD	ONG'ARIA BARASA GODEREY	MASIGA GORDON TARSIUS FORUM FOR THE RESTORATION OF	ONGOMA CHRISPINUS	KEMKE MAGERO OKWARA MAURICE
% REJECTED VOTES TO TOTAL VOTES CAST		2.03%		0.00%		%00.0		1.29%		1.28%			
REJECTED V		33		0		0		27		6			
VALID		1,596		100		297		2,062		969			
% VOTER TURNOUT		45.73%		9.62%		88.92%		34.92%		47.16%			
TOTAL VOTES CAST		1,629		100		297		2,089		705			
REGISTERED VOTERS		3,562		1,040		334		5,982		1,495			
POLLING AREA		0006 KITAINGO		0009 LOKITANYALA		NKAIRAMIRAM		KIBABII		EMAGINA(KISOKO)			
POLI		9000		6000		Н 0020		0001		0017			
CONSTITUENCY		073 KILOME		109 KACHELIBA		142 NAROK NORTH 0020 NKAIRAMIRAM		172 KANDUYI		175 NAMBALE			

NO	DISTRICT	NAME OF CO-ORDINATOR
1.	NAIROBI	MARGARET A. N. GULAVIC
2.	MOMBASA	SALEH ALI MIRZA
	KWALE	ANTONY CHIBWARA FRANCIS
	KILIFI	MACLEAN MBUI
	MALINDI	CHRISTINE B. KARANI (MRS)
	TANA RIVER	BOBA GALGALO SHAMBARO
	LAMU	A. A. ABDULRAHAMAN
	TAITA	GIBRIAN MWAITA
	GARISSA	ROBLE HAJI MOHAMED
).	WAJIR	HASSAN BULE OSMAN
	MANDERA	KHALIF MOHAMED SHEIKH
2.	MOYALE	YAHYA SHARIF ABDIRAHIM
	MARSABIT	PAUL CHOTA GACHE
	ISIOLO	DR. ABDUBA WAKO SAMA
i.	NYAMBENE	DIONYSIUS NGORE
5.	MERU CENTRAL	JANIFAR M. MUROGOCHO
	MERU SOUTH	EUSTACE NKOROI NYAGA
	MERU EAST	FESTUS MUGAMBI
9.	EMBU	JOSEPH PETER NGARI
).	MBEERE	JOHN NJIRU NGURU
	MWINGI	JOSEPH M. KATWEI
	KITUI	FRANCIS KATUA
	MACHAKOS	JOHNSON WAMBUA NDONYE
٠.	MAKUENI	THOMAS MAINGI MUNYOKI
	NYANDARUA	F. N. KIHUMBA
	NYERI	NELSON MUCHEMI GICHOHI
<b>'</b> .	KIRINYAGA	LYDIA THITU
	MURANG'A	THOMAS N. NGUGI
	MARAGWA	CLAUDIO MWANGI
	THIKA	DAVID MAINA
	KIAMBU	DAVID MOKO
	TURKANA	MICHAEL A. IKMAT
	WEST POKOT	EDWIN KOECH
	SAMBURU	PETER LEKISAT
	TRANS NZOIA	TUVELO MUINDI
	UASIN GISHU	D. K. LOPURIANG'
	MARAKWET	ANDREW K. CHEMWENO
	KEIYO	ERIC ROTICH BARGORET
	NANDI	STEVEN MAGUT
	BARINGO	JEREMIAH K. CHEBII
	KOBATEK	JOHAH C. MOLOK
	LAIKIPIA	STANLEY R. MAMAIYO
	NAKURU	JOHAH M. KIROREI
	TRANSMARA	PIUS OLE KANKANO
	NAROK	JOEL WAUPARI
	KAJIADO	JOSIAH OLE SEKENTO
	BOMET	ERIC BARGATET
	KERICHO	FREDRICK M. SOI
	MALAVA/LUGARI	CORNELIUS A. N. OBULUTSA
	KAKAMEGA	KAROLI B. SHIKANGA
	BUTERE/MUMIS	ARUNGA EPICHE
	VIHIGA	GRACE MUGALO
		0111001120

54.	BUNGOMA	SAMWEL W. SIMIYU
55.	TESO	SYLVESTER ZACHARY ALUKU
56.	BUSIA	PATRICK N. KWEDHO
57.	SIAYA	WALTER ABSALOMS
58.	BONDO	BENJAMIN MONYE OGOL
59.	KISUMU	ANDREW J. OKOTH
60.	NYANDO	LEONARD E. OCHOLA
61.	RACHUONYO	DISHON H. AGUTU
62.	HOMABAY	Z.O. MAKOLWAL
63.	MIGORI	ELIJAH MAERI
64.	SUBA	JOHNSON PINTO RAKWACH
65.	KURIA	SAMUEL MOSETI MUNIKO
66.	KISII CENTRAL	JOHN OIGARA
67.	KISII SOUTH	OMWERI ANGIMA
68.	KISII NORTH	JOSHUA NYABOGA

